
  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 4 
November 6, 2017 

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, November 6, 2017 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Porter 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to attend all 
meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a Public Hearing is 
scheduled. 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for Recognition” form.  
Forms are on the table at the back of the room. Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. Recommended 
time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
a. Introduction of RARE Intern Isaac Kort-Meade 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. October 2, 2017 City Council Minutes 
b. Resolution No. 968, City Administrator Evaluation Process and Forms 
 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which are routine in nature and 
for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any item placed on the Consent Agenda may be 
removed at the request of any council member prior to the time a vote is taken.  All remaining items of the Consent Agenda are 
then disposed of in a single motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will 
then poll the council members individually by a roll call vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the consent Agenda 
is then voted on individually by roll call vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more detailed staff reports, letters, 
resolutions, and other supporting materials.  A citizen wishing to review these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. 
Third Avenue, Stayton, or the Stayton Public Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or other 
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. If you require special 
accommodations contact Deputy City Recorder Alissa Angelo at (503) 769-3425. 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
November 6, 2017 

PUBLIC HEARING  
Ordinance No. 1013 Amending Land Use Code Regarding Fencing Requirements 
for Subdivisions and Partitions 
a. Commencement of Public Hearing 
b. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
c. Questions from Council 
d. Proponents’ Testimony 
e. Opponents’ Testimony 
f. General Testimony 
g. Questions from Public 
h. Questions from Council 
i. Staff Summary 
j. Close of Hearing 
k. Council Deliberation 
l. Council Decision on Ordinance No. 1013 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Council Call-up of Staff Administrative Decision      Action 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS 
Finance Department Report – Cindy Chauran & Elizabeth Baldwin  Informational 
a. September 2017 Monthly Finance Department Report 
 
Police Chief’s Report – Chief Rich Sebens      Informational 
a. September 2017 Statistical Report 
 
Public Works Director’s Report – Lance Ludwick     Informational 
a. September 2017 Operating Report 
b. Annual TMDL Report 

 
Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman   Informational 
a. September 2017 Activities Report 
 
Library Director’s Report – Janna Moser      Informational 
a. September 2017 Activities 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
November 6, 2017 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 

 

BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR 
 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – November 20, 2017 
• Public Hearing on Annexation, Comprehensive Plan, and Zone Change 
• Rental Licensing 
• Board and Committee Appointments 
 
ADJOURN 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
November 6, 2017 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 
NOVEMBER 2017 

Monday November 6 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday November 7 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday November 10 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF VETERANS DAY HOLIDAY 

Tuesday November 14 Commissioner’s Breakfast Cancelled  
Wednesday  November 15 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday November 20 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Thursday November 23 

CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF THANKSGIVING HOLIDAY 
Friday November 24 

Monday November 27 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
DECEMBER 2017 

Monday December 4 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday December 5 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday December 8 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday December 12 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday December 18 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday December 20 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday December 22 CITY OFFICES CLOSE AT NOON IN OBSERVANCE OF CHRISTMAS HOLIDAY 

Monday December 25 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF CHRISTMAS HOLIDAY 
JANUARY 2018 

Monday January 1 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF NEW YEARS HOLIDAY 
Tuesday January 2 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday January 3 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday January 9 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday January 12 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday January 15 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF MARTIN LUTHER KING HOLIDAY 
Tuesday January 16 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday January 17 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
FEBRUARY 2018 

Monday February 5 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday February 6 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday February 9 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday February 13 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday February 19 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF PRESIDENTS DAY  HOLIDAY 
Tuesday February 20 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday February 21 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 1 of 2 
October 2, 2017 

City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Action Minutes 

October 2, 2017 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:06 P.M.     Time End: 7:48 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Priscilla Glidewell Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
Councilor Mark Kronquist Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Brian Quigley  Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
Councilor Joe Usselman (excused) Janna Moser, Library Director 
 Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc. 

 
None. 
None. 

Presentations / Comments from the Public 
a. Introduction of RARE Intern Isaac Kort-Meade 

 
Isaac Kort-Meade was unable to attend the 
meeting this evening and will be rescheduled for a 
future meeting. 

Consent Agenda 
a. September 18, 2017 City Council Minutes 

 
Motion from Councilor Kronquist, seconded by 
Councilor Quigley, to approve the Consent Agenda 
as presented. Motion passed 3:0. 

Public Hearing  None.  
Unfinished Business 
Second Consideration of Ordinance Regarding Vacation of an 
Alleyway 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 

 
 
 
Mr. Fleishman offered a review of the staff report. 
Nothing further. 
Motion from Councilor Kronquist, seconded by 
Councilor Quigley, to approve the second 
consideration of Ordinance No. 1009 as presented. 
Motion passed 2:1 (Glidewell). 

New Business 
Stayton Family Memorial Pool Update 
a. Staff Report – Billie Hight-Maurer 

  
 
Ms. Hight-Maurer reviewed the revenues for July 
and August at the Pool, and gave an update on 
pool operations and programs. She also 
introduced Pool Staff Supervisor Katie Coyle. 

Staff / Commission Reports 
Finance Department Report – Cindy Chauran & Elizabeth Baldwin 
a. August 2017 Monthly Finance Department Report 

 
 
Brief discussion of the City’s new payment service. 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 2 of 2 
October 2, 2017 

Police Chief’s Report – Chief Rich Sebens 
a. August 2017 Statistical Report 
 
Public Works Director’s Report – Lance Ludwick 
a. August 2017 Operating Report  
 
 
Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman 
a. August 2017 Activities Report 
 
Library Director’s Report – Janna Moser  
a. August 2017 Activities 

 
Chief Sebens offered a brief review of his report.  
 
 
Mr. Ludwick offered a brief review and there was 
discussion of a dedication for the dog park.  
 
 
Discussion of development in the community. 
 
 
Ms. Moser reviewed her report and spoke about 
the upcoming Friends of the Library Used Book 
Sale later this week. 

Presentations / Comments From the Public None. 
Business from City Administrator Mr. Campbell spoke about Councilor Niegel’s 

resignation and offered thanks for her years of 
service as a member of the City Council.  
 
He also informed the Council the City had been 
presented with a Safety Award from City County 
Insurance Services. 

Business from the Council None. 
Business from the Mayor  Discussion of appointing a new Councilor to fill 

former Councilor Niegel’s position and the City 
Administrator’s annual evaluation.  

Future Agenda Items – Monday, October 16, 2017 
a. TMDL Report 
b. Mill Creek Park 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 6TH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2017, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 
Date:   Attest:   

 Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
       
Date:  Transcribed by:        
   Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder  
 
DATE:   November 6, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:  Consent Agenda – Resolution No. 968, City Administrator 

Evaluation Form and Process 
  
     
ISSUE 
Council adoption of Resolution No. 968 implementing an updated evaluation process and form 
for the City Administrator’s annual evaluation, and repealing Resolution No. 910. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
In 2014, the City Council adopted a new City Administrator evaluation process and form with 
Resolution No. 910. After using the form for two separate evaluation processes, it was 
determined the Council wanted to revise the process and form. 
 
Over the past several months, I have worked with closely with our Human Resources Consultant 
Xenium to develop a form and process that better fits the needs of the Council.  
 
The revised evaluation process (Exhibit A) will mirror what we have actually implemented 
during the 2016 evaluation process. The updated form (Exhibit B) is condensed and an online 
360o survey (Exhibit C) will be put in place for Department Heads.  
 
MOTION(S) 
Consent Agenda approval. 
 



 
Resolution No. 968 – City Administrator Evaluation Process and Form                   Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 968 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE CRITERIA AND PROCESS TO BE USED BY THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL IN THEIR ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council wishes to establish criteria to evaluate the City 
Administrator. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The attached are hereby adopted: 
a. City Administrator Evaluation Process (Exhibit A) 
b. Evaluation Form (Exhibit B) 
c. 360o Management Performance Online Survey Form to be completed by 

Department Heads (Exhibit C)  
2. Resolution No. 910 is hereby repealed. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 6TH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2017. 

    CITY OF STAYTON 

DATE:   BY: 
 

    Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

DATE:   ATTEST: 

 

    Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:    
    

Wallace W. Lien, Acting City Attorney   
 

  



EXHIBIT A 

 

City Administrator Evaluation Process 

1. Objectives 
a. Qualitatively measure the Administrator’s performance. 
b. Assist the Administrator by providing direction and identifying the City Council’s 

expectations. 
c. Identify and reestablish the City Council / Administrator roles. 
d. Identify and reinforce positive aspects of the Administrator’s performance. 

 
2. Evaluation Process 

a. Blank evaluation forms provided to Mayor, City Council, and City Administrator 
with a submittal deadline of no more than two weeks. 

b. Online 360 degree Management Performance online survey distributed to 
Department Heads with a submittal deadline of no more than two weeks.  

c. Mayor or Council President (if so directed by the Mayor), receives all 
worksheets, papers, and notes prepared by Mayor and individual City Council 
members and prepares a composite evaluation.  

i. These documents shall be available to City Council members upon 
request.  

ii. Mayor shall collect all documents prior to everyone leaving the meeting 
at which the evaluation is reviewed.  

d. An Executive Session will be scheduled within two weeks of submission deadline 
for completed evaluation forms.  

e. At the Executive Session, the Mayor and Council will meet to discuss the final 
composite evaluation.  

f. The Administrator will join the Executive Session to review the composite 
evaluation and the results of the online 360 degree Management Performance 
survey completed by Department Heads, and the Administrator’s self-evaluation. 

i. The composite evaluation may be modified based upon input from 
Administrator. 

g. Once the evaluation is finalized a copy will be provided to the Administrator and 
a copy will be placed in the personnel file. The Mayor and City Council shall 
subsequently have access to the personnel file copy. 

h. If necessary, a follow-up executive session will be scheduled within 90 days to 
review progress on areas identified as not meeting expectations.  



Performance Review & Development Plan 
City Manager 

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION 

Name:  Review Date:  

Position:  Manager:  

Department:  Review Period:  

POSITION DESCRIPTION 
This position is established as the administrative head of the city government. The City Manager is responsible to the 
mayor and council for the proper administration of city business. The City Manager will assist the mayor and council in 
the development of city policies, and carry out policies set by ordinances and resolutions. 

COMPETENCY EVALUATION 
Competency: Community Relations 
Represents City with positive outlook. Is courteous to public at all times. Keeps commitments to the public. Maintains 
effective relations with media representatives. Available and visible to citizens. Effective media contact/relations. Open 
to suggestions from the public concerning improvements in services. Resolves citizen complaints consistent with Council 
policy in a timely manner. Open and honest with citizens. Takes a consistent position with different audiences. 
DOES NOT MEET EXPECTATIONS (1) 

☐

MEETS EXPECTATIONS (2) 
☐

EXCEEDS EXPECTATIONS (3) 
☐

STRENGTHS: OPPORTUNITIES: 

Competency: City Council Relations 
Keeps Council informed of problems, issues, current plans and activities, legislation, governmental practices, etc. 
Reporting to Council is timely, clear, concise and thorough. Effectively implements policies and programs approved by 
Council. Accepts direction or instructions in a positive manner. Effectively aids the Council in establishing long-range 
goals. Participates in Council discussions and makes recommendations where appropriate. Anticipates and advises the 
Council regarding important foreseeable problems, needs and opportunities. 
DOES NOT MEET EXPECTATIONS (1) 

☐

MEETS EXPECTATIONS (2) 
☐

EXCEEDS EXPECTATIONS (3) 
☐

STRENGTHS: OPPORTUNITIES: 

EXHIBIT B



Performance Review & Development Plan 
City Manager 

 

 
 

COMPETENCY EVALUATION 
Competency: Fiscal Management 
Prepares and proposes in a timely manner a balanced, understandable and realistic budget. Budget is well documented 
and organized to assist Council with policy decisions. Seeks efficiency, economy and effectiveness in all programs. 
Controls expenditures in accordance with the approved budget. Keeps City council informed about revenues and 
expenditures, actual and projected. Makes sound decisions that consider cost/benefit.  
DOES NOT MEET EXPECTATIONS (1) 

☐ 
MEETS EXPECTATIONS (2) 

☐ 
EXCEEDS EXPECTATIONS (3) 

☐ 
STRENGTHS:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OPPORTUNITIES:  

 
Competency: Intergovernmental Relationships 
Represents City to intergovernmental bodies. Effective communication with local, regional, state and federal 
government agencies. Financial resources (cost sharing, grants, etc.) from other organizations are pursued. Contributes 
to good government through participation in local, regional and state committees and organizations. Lobbies 
effectively with legislators and state agencies regarding City programs and projects. 
DOES NOT MEET EXPECTATIONS (1) 

☐ 
MEETS EXPECTATIONS (2) 

☐ 
EXCEEDS EXPECTATIONS (3) 

☐ 
STRENGTHS:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OPPORTUNITIES:  

 
Competency: Operations Management 
Assures suitable systems, policies, and processes for accounting and fund management, personnel management, office 
space, information technology, and risk management. 
DOES NOT MEET EXPECTATIONS (1) 

☐ 
MEETS EXPECTATIONS (2) 

☐ 
EXCEEDS EXPECTATIONS (3) 

☐ 
STRENGTHS:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OPPORTUNITIES:  



Performance Review & Development Plan 
City Manager 

 

 
 

Competency: Staff Management 
Able to delegate authority, granting proper authority at the proper times. Utilizes a positive approach to direct work 
efforts of staff. Addresses employee issues promptly and effectively. Encourages and rewards initiative. Provides 
personnel supervision, hiring and termination, develops administrative policies and practices. Manages collective 
bargaining negotiations and contracts. Organizes the structure of City Departments. 
DOES NOT MEET EXPECTATIONS (1) 

☐ 
MEETS EXPECTATIONS (2) 

☐ 
EXCEEDS EXPECTATIONS (3) 

☐ 
STRENGTHS:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OPPORTUNITIES:  

 
RATING OF CORE COMPETENCIES 

Add all ratings and write total here: ____________   ÷  6   =   ___________ 

DOES NOT MEET EXPECTATIONS  
(1.00-1.66) 

☐ 

MEETS EXPECTATIONS 
(1.67-2.33) 

☐ 

EXCEEDS EXPECTATIONS 
(2.34-3.00) 

☐ 
 

PERFORMANCE GOALS & ACTION PLAN 
The performance evaluation is based on the principle that each individual should have the opportunity to receive 
feedback about their performance and guidance on how to improve and develop for their future. 
 
Prepare your development recommendations based on the employee’s opportunities for improving or enhancing 
performance. 
1. Indicate specific performance that requires improvement.  
 
 
 
 
2. Include any specific job activities or training that you believe would be relevant and helpful. 
 
 
 
 
3. Together, set agreed upon goals with completion dates. 
 
 
 
 
 



Performance Review & Development Plan 
City Manager 

 

 
 

 
PERSONAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Goal / Desired Result: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Stated Key Actions: 
 

Date Set: 
 
 
 
 
 

Individual Activities: 
 

 
 

EMPLOYEE COMMENTS 

 
VERIFICATION OF REVIEW 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

By signing this form, you confirm that you have discussed this review in detail with your manager. Signing this form 
does not necessarily indicate that you agree with this evaluation but that you have reviewed it. 

SIGNATURES PRINTED NAME DATE 

EMPLOYEE:   

CITY COUNCIL DESIGNEE:   



360° Management 
Performance Form 

Enter Employee's Name Here 

Feedback Request for Leadership Behaviors 
N/O=Not Observed   1=Never   2=Seldom   3=Sometimes   4= Often 5=Always 

1. Please provide a rating to reflect your view of Leadership's behavior in inspiring a shared vision:

1.1 Provides direction around the company’s mission N/O 1 2 3 4 5 
1.2 Translates the mission into actionable plans N/O 1 2 3 4 5 
1.3 Creates enthusiasm about the future of our Company N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

Please provide examples of both strengths and areas for improvement related to Inspiring a Shared Vision: 

2. Please provide a rating to reflect your view of Leadership's behavior in valuing people:

2.1 Shows respect for others and their ideas N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

2.2 Places team success before personal agenda N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

2.3 Listens to team members and peers in an open and respectful 
manner 

N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

2.4 Encourages others' involvement in making things better N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

2.5 Appreciates differences between people in thought and style N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

2.6 Allows for flexibility in how work is accomplished N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

2.7 Considers others' needs when making decisions N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

Please provide examples of both strengths and areas for improvement related to Valuing People: 

3. Please provide a rating to reflect your view of Leadership's Behavior in development of self and
others:

3.1  Demonstrates personal growth and learning N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

3.2  Encourages continuous growth & learning in others N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

EXHIBIT C



 
 
 

3.3  Delegates without micromanaging N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

3.4  Acknowledges mistakes & learns from them N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

3.5  Sets clear performance expectations in advance N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

3.6 Shares positive performance feedback that is timely and 
direct 

N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

3.7 Shares constructive performance feedback that is timely and 
direct 

 
N/O 

 
1 

 
2 

 
3 

 
4 

 
5 

3.8  Demonstrates initiative and encourages initiative in others N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

3.9  Seeks employee feedback N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

3.10 Responds to employee feedback N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

3.11 Makes decisions that are focused on the issue and not the 
person 

N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

 

Please provide examples of both strengths and areas for improvement related to Develops Self and Others: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. Please provide a rating to reflect your view of Leadership's communication: 
 

 
4.1 Communicates effectively, respectfully and continuously 

 
N/O 

 
1 

 
2 

 
3 

 
4 

 
5 

4.2 Listens to what others have to say N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

4.3 Shares opinions even when unpopular N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

4.4 Expresses disagreement earlier rather than later N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

4.5 Makes others feel safe in honestly expressing themselves N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

 
Please provide examples of both strengths and areas for improvement related to Communication: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

5. Please provide a rating to reflect your view of Leadership's ability to act in the best interest of the 
business and the mission: 

 
5.1 Is visible, with a positive presence N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

5.2 Is highly ethical and professional N/O 1 2 3 4 5 



 
 
 

5.3 Is an effective team member N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

5.4 Instills effective team membership in others N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

5.5 Models collaboration across organizational/department lines N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

5.6 Gets involved in making things better in the Company and 
community 

N/O 1 2 3 4 5 

 

Please provide examples of both strengths and areas for improvement related to Acting in the Best Interest 
of the Company and Mission: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Is there anything else you would like to share? 



 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: November 6, 2017 

 SUBJECT: Ordinance 1013 Amending Land Use Code regarding 
Fencing Requirements for Subdivisions and Partitions 

  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is a public hearing on legislative amendments to the Land Use 
and Development Code to require the erection of fences around certain subdivisions and 
partitions.  Following the public hearing, the Council will be requested to consider Ordinance 
1013 to amend the Code.  

BACKGROUND 

In July, the Planning Commission was presented with a request to consider an amendment to 
the Code to require new subdivisions to have perimeter fences constructed along existing 
streets.  The Commission reviewed suggested amendments at their August meeting, made a 
few revisions and held a public hearing at their September meeting. 

The proposed amendments would require that a residential subdivision or partitioning that 
borders an arterial street or a major collector street construct a fence along the boundary 
adjacent to that street and to establish a lot owners association to maintain the fence. 

The amendments would apply to residential subdivisions and partitions adjacent to  

 Cascade Hwy 

 S First Ave 

 Shaff Rd 

 Golf Club Rd 

 Fern Ridge Rd 

 Gardner Ave 

 W Ida St 

 E Jefferson St between N Sixth Ave and N Tenth Ave 

 N Tenth Ave between E Jefferson St and Fern Ridge Rd 

 Locust St 

 W Washington St 

 E Washington St between N First Ave and N Sixth Ave 



 

 E Santiam St east of N Tenth Ave. 

This amendment would apply only to new applications for subdivisions and partitions, not to 
existing ones.  There are six vacant lots in the City Limits, zoned residential, and large enough to 
be divided.  These provisions would apply to parcels adjacent to the streets listed above to be 
annexed in the future, should they be divided. 

Attached are an order from the Planning Commission forwarding the amendments to the City 
Council for your consideration and a draft of Ordinance 1013 which incorporates the 
amendments recommended by the Planning Commission. 

Staff had originally suggested to the Planning Commission that the required fence be 
constructed of masonry or vinyl.  The Planning Commission chose to remove that provision 
from the amendment.  Staff believes that such a requirement will result in easier long-term 
maintenance and improved aesthetics within the community. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning Commission has recommended approval. 

The staff also recommends approval with an amendment to require masonry or vinyl 
construction.   

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1013 

Move to approve Ordinance No 1013 as presented. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote shall be recorded 
in the meeting minutes. If the vote is unanimous, Ordinance No. 1013 is enacted and will be presented to the 
Mayor for his approval. 

If the vote is not unanimous, Ordinance No. 1013 will be brought before the Council for a second 
consideration at the November 20, 2017 meeting.  

2. Approve the Ordinance with modifications  

Move to approve Ordinance No. 1013 with the following changes … and direct staff to 
incorporate these changes into the Ordinance before the Ordinance is presented to the City 
Council for a second consideration. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote shall be recorded 
in the meeting minutes. If the first consideration is approved, Ordinance No. 1010 will be brought before the 
Council for a second consideration at its November 20, 2017 meeting.  

3. Retain the Code unchanged 

No motion is necessary.  

 





 

Ordinance No. 1013 Requiring Fences in Certain Subdivisions and Partitions Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 1013 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 17, TO 
REQUIRE THE ERECTION OF FENCES IN SUBDIVISIONS AND PARTITIONS 

ADJACENT TO ARTERIAL AND MAJOR COLLECTOR STREETS 
 
WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 197 requires municipalities to adopt and implement a 
comprehensive land use planning program in accordance with statewide planning goals established by 
the Legislature and the Oregon Land Conservation and Development Commission; 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton has adopted Title 17 of the Stayton Municipal Code (SMC) as the 
Land Use and Development Code; 

WHEREAS, SMC Title 17, Chapter 24, Section 17.24.050 establishes the standards for approval and 
development of land subdivisions and partitions; 

WHEREAS, the Stayton Transportation System Plan designates the functional classification of streets 
with the City and the Urban Growth Boundary; 

WHEREAS, arterial streets and major collector streets are those streets with higher levels of traffic and 
faster vehicle speeds than the other functional classifications; 

WHEREAS, having the side or rear yards of lots in residential subdivisions or partitions adjacent to 
arterial or major collector streets may create safety hazards; 

WHEREAS, the safety of the community will be increased by requiring the erection of fences in 
residential subdivisions and partitions along arterial and major collector streets; 

WHEREAS, the aesthetics of the community will be increased by requiring such fences to be uniform 
of nature throughout a subdivision or partition and if provisions are made for the upkeep and 
maintenance of such fences;  

WHEREAS, the Stayton Planning Commission has initiated the process for amending the Land Use 
and Development Code and following a public hearing has recommended that the Stayton City Council 
enact the proposed amendments; and 

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council, following a public hearing, does find that the amendments 
proposed by the Planning Commission are appropriate. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Stayton ordains: 

Section 1.  Requirement for Fences Enacted.  Stayton Municipal Code, Title 17, Chapter 17.24, 
Section 17.24.050.19 is hereby enacted as follows: 

19. FENCES. 

a. Within a residential zone, a perimeter fence of uniform appearance adequate to prevent people 
from exiting yards into the street shall be installed along the subdivision or partition boundary 
adjacent to a street classified as a principal arterial, minor arterial, or major collector street.  

b. The fence along the perimeter shall be installed prior to approval of the final plat. 

c. The fence along the perimeter shall meet the requirements of Section 17.20.050.1. 

d. When a subdivision has a fence constructed in accordance with this section, maintenance of the 
fence shall be the responsibility of a lot owners association, to be established in the conditions, 
covenants and restrictions to be recorded with the final plat. 



 

Ordinance No. 1013 Requiring Fences in Certain Subdivisions and Partitions Page 2 of 2 

Section 2.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 30 days after adoption by the 
Stayton City Council and the Mayor’s signing. 

Section 3.  A copy of this Ordinance shall be furnished to the State of Oregon, Department of Land 
Conservation and Development forthwith. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 6th day of November, 2017.  

CITY OF STAYTON 

Signed: ____________, 2017 BY: _______________________________ 
 Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

Signed: ____________, 2017 ATTEST: _______________________________ 
 Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

_______________________________ 
Wallace W. Lien, Acting City Attorney 

 



MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL

FROM: Wallace W. Lien, Acting City Attorney

DATE: October 31, 2017

RE: Land Use Decision Call Up Procedures and Options (Sunshine Coffee, Case No.
Case No. 9-09/17)

This Memo is intended to assist the Council with its deliberations on the matter of the staff
approval of the Sunshine Coffee application.

1.  Background Facts

Heidi Shamblen, lessee of property owned by Robert and Patricia Ebner, applied for a minor
modification to a previously approved site plan (Case No. 9-09/17) to be able to site a coffee kiosk
at 2550 Martin Drive, which is the corner of Whitney St. and N. Third Ave. in Santiam Station.  The
application was reviewed by staff, and approved with conditions on October 9, 2017.  Councilor
Quigley, pursuant to SMC 17.12.070(1)(e), issued a “call up” of the staff decision.  Subsequently,
an appeal of this staff decision was filed by a citizen.  Thereafter, another citizen filed an appeal of
this decision.

The application now comes before the Council on November 6, 2017 for deliberation on the
“call up” by Councilor Quigley.

Of special note is the deadline for City action on this application, which is January 11, 2018. 
All City decisions and appeals must be fully exhausted by that date.  Whatever process is selected
must be able to have a final decision made by that date.

2.  Jurisdiction Over the Decision

The action of Councilor Quigley in exercising his right to “call up” the staff decision has the
impact of vesting sole jurisdiction over the application with the Council.  Subsequent attempted
appeals have no consequence as to appeal rights, but are included in the land use record and
considered evidence relating to the application.  Effectively, the “call up” was a special kind of
appeal of the decision, negating any other attempted appeals.

Both parties who filed appeals after the “call up” should be considered “interested parties”
as to this application, and therefore are entitled to notice of all further proceedings.  No party has lost
the right to appeal any decision pursuant to the SMC or ORS in this case on account of this “call up.” 
Future appeal rights depend upon what action is now taken by the Council.

Neither staff nor the Planning Commission have any further role to play in this decision

Page 1 - Memo to Council



making process unless so directed by the Council.

3.  Process for Deliberations

The matter before the Council on November 6, 2017 is the singular question of how this land
use application should proceed.  No decision on the merits of the application shall be made at this
meeting.  Council must be careful to avoid expressing any opinion on the merits of the application,
as that could result in a challenge for bias or pre-judgment.  

The discussion on how to process this application is not limited by the issues raised in the
“call up” notice.  Once the Council has jurisdiction, Council has jurisdiction over the entire case, and
any issue of procedure may be discussed in relation to what they might want re-examined. 

The scope of the discussion should be limited to how to deal with the application now that
it is before the Council.  This is a procedural discussion only.  This procedural decision is
interlocutory in nature, and as such is not appealable to LUBA.

The deliberations of Council are not conducted in a public hearing format, and the public is
not entitled to address the Council on this matter.  The Council deliberations become part of the land
use record.  The right of the public to be heard in an official public hearing will depend upon the
action taken by the Council.

The Council has three options to consider in its deliberations.  

The first is to continue with Council jurisdiction.  If this is the decision of the Council, a
public hearing before the Council will be scheduled and properly noticed.  Upon the conclusion of
this public hearing, the Council will decide to approve the application; or approve the application
with conditions; or to deny the application.  This substantive final Council decision is then
appealable to LUBA.

The second option is for the Council to remand the staff decision to the Planning
Commission for its review and decision.  If this is the decision of the Council, a public hearing
before the Planning Commission will be scheduled and properly noticed.  Upon the conclusion of
this public hearing, the Planning Commission will decide to approve the application; or approve the
application with conditions; or to deny the application.  This Planning Commission decision is
appealable to the Council for further review as provided for in the SMC.  If appealed, Council may
then affirm the decision of the Planning Commission; of agree to hold a Council public hearing to
ultimately decide the matter.

The third option is for the Council to remand the decision back to staff for further review and
consideration.  If this is the decision of the Council, staff will be required to re-evaluate the decision,
and issue a new decision.  This new decision would then be appealable to the Planning Commission,
or subject to another “call-up” by the Council, and the process outlined in the SMC for consideration
of the application (and as discussed here) would be followed.

Page 2 - Memo to Council



In the event Council elects to remand the case to either the Planning Commission or to staff,
it is appropriate to point out code provisions, or conditions that Council would like to have re-
examined.  While it is inappropriate to express an opinion on the outcome of this case, it is
acceptable for Council to point out areas of the staff decision that should be re-examined on remand. 
Such comments, will not rise to the level of creating any bias or prejudgment.

The decision of the Council should be put in the form of a Motion stating the process to be
followed in finalizing this application.

Page 3 - Memo to Council



 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: November 6, 2017 

 SUBJECT: Council Call-up of Staff Administrative Decision 
  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is the review of administrative decision issued by staff for the 
minor modification of a previously approved site plan.  

BACKGROUND 

SMC Section 17.12.070.1.a gives City staff the authority and responsibility to review certain 
land use applications.  Among these are minor modifications, which are defined as the 
modification to an approved land use application that does not meet the criteria for a major 
modification.   

Section 17.12.100 allows any member of the City Council or the Mayor to “call-up” the 
application to further consider the decision when a Notice of Decision has been issued by the 
staff or the Planning Commission.  Upon a decision being called up, the City Council may elect 
to hold a public hearing, or may refer the case back to the original decision authority with 
direction on how to proceed. 

In the present case, Councilor Quiqley has called up my decision.  In addition, two owners of 
neighboring property filed appeals.  Because of the Council call-up, the appeals were not 
accepted. 

Attached are the application form, revised plan, order of approval, notice of decision, and call 
up form for the subject application. 

ANALYSIS 

2550 Martin Drive is located at the southwest corner of N Third Ave and Whitney St, in the 
Santiam Station subdivision.  The property has been the subject of multiple site plan review 
approvals in the past 14 years or so.  In 2013, site plan approval was granted for the 
establishment of a seasonal produce stand. 

The site is a portion of Lot 5 in Santiam Station and is subject to the CC&Rs and architectural 
standards for that subdivision.  Lot 5 was subsequently replatted and divided into six lots, which 
benefit from and are subject to mutual access and shared parking easements. 



 

The 2013 site plan approval called for the development of a vacant lot with a driveway entrance 
onto N Third Ave, a covered sales area to be located within an area of pavers, and gravel 
parking area.  The 2013 approval noted that the proposed use did not involve the construction 
of any buildings as it was envisioned as a temporary development until such time as more 
complete development of the property was envisioned.  As such, the architectural design 
standards of the CC&Rs were not applied and conditions of approval at that time allowed the 
gravel-surfaced parking area for up to five years.  The 2013 approval required the parking area 
to be paved if the proposed use was in existence five years after the approval was granted.  

After the site was developed, some inconsistencies with the approved plan were noted and a 
revised plan submitted.  The revised plan was submitted and approved with further conditions 
of approval that required the restriping of the crosswalk and stop bar at the intersection of N 
Third and Whitney St and required a building placed on site to meet the architectural design 
requirements if it was still in place within five years. 

The produce stand operated for only one season.  The tent that provided the sales area and the 
refrigerator building were removed.  The other site improvements – pavers and gravel parking 
area – remained in place. 

The subject application was submitted to the Planning and Development Department on 
September 13, 2017.  The application is for minor modification of the previously approved plan 
and showed the covered sales area removed and the placement of an 8-foot by 20-foot mobile 
unit as a coffee kiosk.  Under the terms of Code review of an application for a modification of a 
previously approved plan is limited only to the modification request – the whole development 
is not opened up for review after it has already been approved. 

As a minor modification, only staff approval is required.  Notification of the application was sent 
to neighboring property owners, as required by the Code, and the application was forwarded to 
other City Departments and the usual parties for review comments.  The application was 
approved with conditions that all previous conditions of approval from Land Use Files 3-03/13 
and 9-06/13 continue to apply and that the parking lot shall be paved if the use continues to be 
in existence in five years from the date this most recent approval. 

Upon notification of my decision, Councilor Quiqley called-up the application.  This gives all 
jurisdiction over the application to the City Council.  As spelled out in an accompanying 
memorandum from the Interim City Attorney, the Council may either retain jurisdiction and set 
a date for a public hearing, refer the application to the Planning Commission for a public 
hearing, or may remand the application to Planning Director with directions on how to proceed.   
If the Council chooses to retain jurisdiction, the 20-day notice requirement for your public 
hearing means the earliest a hearing could be scheduled is December 4.  If referred to the 
Planning Commission, their hearing could be scheduled for November 27. 

Councilor Quigley’s call-up cited two issues:  “review of SMC 17.20.060.10.b” and “previous 
traffic obstructions on Whitney.”  Section 17.20.060.10.b requires “All driveways, parking and 
loading areas [to be] paved with asphalt or concrete surfacing and [to be] adequately designed, 
graded, and drained as required by the Public Works Director.”  The lot currently has a gravel-
surfaced parking area and drive aisles for the drive-through service.  The most recent decision 
allows that condition to remain. 



 

Finally, in addition to the call-up by Council Quiqley, two owners of neighboring properties filed 
appeals of the Staff decision.  Because the call-up placed jurisdiction of the application in the 
hands of the Council, the appeal fees were returned to the appellants.  These property owners 
will have the opportunity to participate in any hearing scheduled by the Council or the Planning 
Commission or could further appeal a revised staff decision. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Council retain jurisdiction and schedule a public hearing for 
December 4. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Continue City Council Jurisdiction and schedule a public hearing 

Move that the City Council retain jurisdiction over this application and schedule a public for 
December 4, 2017. 

2. Remand the Application to the Stayton Planning Commission  

Move that the City Council remand the application to the Stayton Planning Commission for 
review. 

3. Remand the Application to Staff for further review 

Move that the City Council remand the application back to the Planning & Development 
Director for further review and consideration. 

 







 

Order of Conditional Approval, Land Use File #9-09/17 
Sunshine Coffee Kiosk – Minor Modification 

Page 1 of 6 

BEFORE THE STAYTON PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
In the matter of ) Minor Modification of Previously 
The application of ) Approved Site Plan Review 
Heidi Shamblen, Applicant ) File #9-09/17 
 

ORDER OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL 
 

I.  NATURE OF APPLICATION 

The application is for minor amendment to previously approved site plan. 

II. FINDINGS OF FACT 

A. GENERAL FINDINGS 

1. The owner the property is Robert and Patricia Ebner. 

2. The applicant is Heidi Shamblen, who has a lease for the property. 

3. The property can be described as tax lot 1600, on Map 91W03DC. 

4. The property is zoned Commercial Retail (CR). 

5. The property is located at 2550 Martin Drive and is located at the corner of Whitney St and N 
Third Ave. 

6. The property is 9,700 square feet in area and is currently vacant, though it was developed with a 
paved driveway, concrete pavers, and a gravel-surfaced parking area.  

7. The neighboring properties to the south and southwest are zoned CR and are vacant.  The 
neighboring property to the west is zoned CR and is developed as a retail establishment. The 
properties to the east, across N 3rd Ave, are zoned Medium Density Residential and developed 
with single family dwellings.  The property to the north, across Whitney St, is zoned Interchange 
Development and is vacant. 

8. The property has received several Site Plan Review approvals for developments that were not 
constructed.  Most recently, the property received Site Plan Review approval from the Stayton 
Planning and Development Department in 2013 as land use file #3-03/13 which was amended 
later that year by land use file 9-06/13. 

9. The 2013 approval was for the development of a seasonal produce sales establishment.  The 
property was improved in 2013 with the installation of a paved driveway, concrete pavers for the 
sales area, stormwater detention and quality facility, and a gravel surfaced parking area.  The 
structures for the seasonal produce sales establishment have been removed, but the property 
improvements remain in place. 

10. The property is located in the Santiam Station development and was platted on the Santiam 
Station Replat of Lot 5.  The subdivision provided for stormwater detention for the overall 
subdivision.  The design standards from the Fern Ridge Properties LLC, Order of September 23, 
1998 apply.  This lot and the neighboring lots to the south, southwest, and west are subject to a 
reciprocal access and parking easement. 



 

Order of Conditional Approval, Land Use File #9-09/17 
Sunshine Coffee Kiosk – Minor Modification 

Page 2 of 6 

B. PROPOSAL 

The current application is to modify the site plan to remove the seasonal sales area and to install an 
8-foot by 20-foot trailer-mounted drive-through coffee kiosk.  Similar to the last site plan approval, 
this development will be “temporary” in nature, until a more permanent development is planned and 
constructed in the coming years. 

D. AGENCY COMMENTS 

The following agencies were notified of the proposal:  City of Stayton Public Works, Marion County 
Public Works, WAVE Broadband, Stayton Cooperative Telephone Company, Pacific Power, 
Northwest Natural Gas, Santiam Water Control District, Stayton Fire District and Stayton Police 
Department. 

Stayton Cooperative Telephone Company responded with no comments.  

E. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Notice of the Planning and Development Department’s pending decision was sent to owners of all 
property within 300 feet of the subject property.  Comments were received from owners of two 
neighboring properties, which are reflected in the findings below. 

F.  ANALYSIS 

Site plan review applications are required to satisfy approval criteria contained within Stayton 
Municipal Code (SMC) Title 17, Section 17.12.220.  This application is also subject to the design 
standards in SMC Title 17 Chapter 20, specifically, Sections 17.20.060 – Off-Street Parking and 
Loading; 17.20.090 – Landscaping Requirements; 17.20.140 – Signs; 17.20.170 – Outdoor Lighting; 
and 17.20.200 – Commercial Design Standards.  Whereas the proposed development is located in 
the Santiam Station development it is also subject to the architectural and design standards in the 
Stipulated Judgment and City Council Order of September 23, 1998. 

This review and approval is concerned only with the elements of the site plan that are proposed to be 
amended from the previous approvals:  removal of the seasonal sales area and installation of a 
mobile drive-through coffee kiosk. 

G. APPROVAL CRITERIA 

Pursuant to SMC 17.12.220.5 the following criteria must be demonstrated as being satisfied by the 
application: 

a. The existence of, or ability to obtain, adequate utility systems (including water, sewer, surface 
water drainage, power, and communications), and connections, including easements, to properly 
serve development in accordance with City’s Master Plans and Standard Specifications. 

Finding:  The site is currently developed with water, sewer and other utility services available in 
adjacent streets.  The coffee kiosk will not be connected to public water or public sewer. 

b. Provisions for safe and efficient internal traffic circulation, including both pedestrian and motor 
vehicle traffic, and for safe access to the property from those public streets and roads which 
serve the property in accordance with the City’s Transportation System Plan and Standard 
Specifications. 



 

Order of Conditional Approval, Land Use File #9-09/17 
Sunshine Coffee Kiosk – Minor Modification 

Page 3 of 6 

Finding: The property has a shared driveway along the southerly property line, partially on the 
lot to the south, extending to the west property line that provides interconnected access to the 
parking area for the retail establishment to the west. 

c. Provision of all necessary improvements to local streets and roads, including the dedication of 
additional right-of-way to the City and/or the actual improvement of traffic facilities to 
accommodate the additional traffic load generated by the proposed development of the site. 

Finding: N 3rd Ave and Whitney St are both fully improved streets. 

d. Provision has been made for parking and loading facilities as required by Section 17.20.060. 

Finding: See Findings relative to Section 17.20.060 below. 

e. Open storage areas or outdoor storage yards shall meet the standards of Section 17.20.070 

Finding:  There are no proposed open storage areas or outdoor storage yards.  

f. Site design shall minimize off site impacts of noise, odors, fumes or impacts. 

Finding:  There will be no noise, odors or fumes. 

g. The proposed improvements shall meet all applicable criteria of either Section 17.20.190 
Residential Design Standards, or Section 17.20.200 Commercial Design Standards 

Finding:  See Findings relative to Section 17.20.200 below. 

h. The design and placement of buildings and other structural improvements on a site shall provide 
compatibility in size, scale, and intensity of use between the development proposed and similar 
development on neighboring properties 

Finding:  No buildings are proposed. 

i. The design of the proposed improvements will fulfill the intended purpose of the requested use 
and will properly serve customers or clients of the proposed improvements. 

Finding: The proposed structure will provide drive-through coffee service. 

j. Landscaping of the site shall prevent unnecessary destruction of major vegetation, preserve 
unique or unusual natural or historical features, provide for vegetative ground cover and dust 
control, present an attractive interface with adjacent land uses and be consistent with the 
requirements for landscaping and screening in Section 17.20.090. 

Finding:  See Findings relative to Section 17.20.090 below. 

k. The design of any visual, sound, or physical barriers around the property such as fences, walls, 
vegetative screening, or hedges, shall allow them to perform their intended function without 
undue adverse impact on existing land uses. 

Finding:  No barriers are proposed.   

l. The lighting plan satisfies the requirements of Section 17.20.170. 

Finding: No outdoor lighting is proposed. 

m. The applicant has established continuing provisions for maintenance and upkeep of all 
improvements and facilities. 



 

Order of Conditional Approval, Land Use File #9-09/17 
Sunshine Coffee Kiosk – Minor Modification 

Page 4 of 6 

Finding: The owner will be responsible for upkeep and maintenance of the improvements. 

n.  When any portion of an application is within 100 feet of the North Santiam River or Mill Creek 
or within 25 feet of the Salem Ditch, the proposed project will not have an adverse impact on fish 
habitat. 

Finding:  The property is not within 100 feet of the North Santiam River or Mill Creek or within 
25 feet of the Salem Ditch. 

Section 17.20.060 – Off Street Parking Requirements 

The following are the applicable provisions from Section 17.20.060 

17.20.060.7.a: The minimum number of parking spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area for 
eating and drinking establishments is 10.   

17.20.060.7.b  When the required spaces are calculated by this subsection becomes greater than 1/3 of a 
space, the number shall be rounded up. 

Finding:  The application proposes 160 square feet of area, which would require a minimum of 2 
parking spaces.  The revised plan does not show any parking spaces.  The existing gravel surface 
parking area has capacity for more than 2 parking spaces. 

17.20.060.10  DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS.  All parking and loading areas shall be developed 
and maintained as follows:  

Surfacing.  All driveways, parking and loading areas shall be paved with asphalt or concrete 
surfacing and shall be adequately designed, graded, and drained as required by the Public Works 
Director.  In no case shall drainage be allowed to flow across a public sidewalk.  Parking areas 
containing more than 5 parking spaces shall be striped to identify individual parking spaces. 

Finding:  The site currently has a gravel-surfaced parking area, with the exception of the accessible 
parking space, which is surfaced with pervious concrete pavers. 

Section 17.20.200 – Commercial Design Standards 

The following are the applicable provisions from Section 17.20.200 

3.  SITE DESIGN. 

a. Height Step Down.  To provide compatible scale and relationships between new multi-story 
commercial buildings and existing adjacent single-story dwellings, the multi-story 
building(s) shall “step down” to create a building height transition to adjacent single-story 
building(s). 

Finding: The proposed structure is single story. 

4. ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS.  

Finding: The application does not propose a building; a trailer is proposed. 

5. LIGHTING. All new commercial development shall provide a lighting plan that meets the 
standards of Section 17.20.170. 

Finding: The application does not propose any outdoor lighting. 



 

Order of Conditional Approval, Land Use File #9-09/17 
Sunshine Coffee Kiosk – Minor Modification 

Page 5 of 6 

Relevant Criteria—Santiam Station Architectural and Site Design Standards 

A. Architectural Design 

Finding: No building is proposed; a trailer will be brought on site.  No details about the trailer were 
provided with the application. 

B. Site Design 

1. Creek and pond protection to maintain water quality and wild animal habitat shall be 
incorporated into the overall design of a project. 

Finding: There are no creeks or ponds on or adjacent to this property. 

2. Parking lots shall be located to the rear, side or interior of developments. 

Finding: As a drive-through only facility, no parking lot is shown on the plan. 

3. A minimum 5 foot wide landscape strip shall buffer all parking lots from the public right-of-way 
except where driveway and pedestrian access to the site is provided. 

Finding: The proposal shows a landscaped area exceeding five feet wide along the entire street 
frontages (except at access points) of both Whitney St and N 3rd Ave. 

4. Off-street accommodations for automobiles, including the serving of automobiles, shall be 
shielded away from Cascade Highway. 

Finding: The subject property is not adjacent to Cascade Highway. 

5. Building entrances in Commercial Retail (CR) and Interchange District (ID) zones shall be 
setback no more than 10 feet from the street and must be oriented to the street rather than to the 
side or rear. 

Finding: As a drive-through facility, there is no building entrance. 

6. Information kiosks, bike racks, planters, benches, and pedestrian scale lighting are encouraged 
to be displayed along the promenade. As well, the promenade shall have a pattern on it that is 
carried throughout Santiam Station. The pattern can be created through the use of materials 
such as stamped concrete, paved stone or brick. 

Finding: This property is not located on the promenade. 

III. CONCLUSION 

The applicant’s request meets the requirements established in SMC 17.12.220.5 and Section 17.20.060 
except for the following: 

Section 17.20.060.10.b.  This section requires parking areas be paved with asphalt or concrete 
surfacing.  However, due to the temporary nature of this proposal the City Planner has determined 
that paving is not necessary provided the future development of the parcel takes place within 5 years.  

IV. ORDER 

Based on the conclusions above the Director of Planning and Development approves the minor 
modification as shown on an untitled plan  subject to the Standard Conditions of Approval for Land Use 
Applications attached to this decision and the following specific conditions. 



 

Order of Conditional Approval, Land Use File #9-09/17 
Sunshine Coffee Kiosk – Minor Modification 

Page 6 of 6 

1. All prior conditions of approval from Land Use Files 3-03/13 and 9-06/13 shall continue to be 
met unless specifically changed by the revised site plan. 

2. The parking lot shall be paved if the use continues to be in existence in five years from the date 
of this approval. 

V. OTHER PERMITS AND RESTRICTIONS 

The applicant is herein advised that the use of the property involved in this application may require 
additional permits from the City or other local, State or Federal agencies. 

The City of Stayton Land Use review and approval process does not take the place of, or relieve the 
Applicant of responsibility for acquiring such other permits, or satisfy any restrictions or conditions 
there on. The land use permit approval herein does not remove, alter, or impair in any way the covenants 
or restrictions imposed on this property by deed or other instrument. 

In accordance with Section 17.12.120.7, the land use approval granted by this decision shall be effective 
only when the exercise of the rights granted herein is commenced within one year of the effective date 
of the decision.  In case such right has not been exercised or extension obtained, the approval shall be 
void.  A written request for an extension of time may be filed with the Director of Planning and 
Development at least 30 days prior to the expiration date of the approval. 

VI. APPEAL DATES 

The Director’s action may be appealed to the Stayton Planning Commission pursuant to Stayton 
Municipal Code Section 17.12.400 APPEALS. 

 October 9, 2017 
 Dan Fleishman, Date 

 Director of Planning and Development



 

Standard Conditions of Approval Page 1 of 2 

Standard Conditions of Approval for Land Use Applications 

1. Minor variations to the approved plan shall be permitted provided the development 
substantially conforms to the submitted plans, conditions of approval, and all applicable 
standards contained in the Stayton Land Use and Development Code. 

2. Permit Approval:  The applicant shall obtain all necessary permits and approvals from the 
City of Stayton prior to construction of the project. 

3. Change in Use - Any change in the use of the premises from that identified in the application 
shall require the City Planner to determine that the proposed use is an allowed use and that 
adequate parking is provided on the parcel. 

4. Landscaping - The applicant shall remain in substantial conformance to the approved 
landscaping plan and follow the criteria established in SMC 17.20.090 for maintenance and 
irrigation.  Dead plants shall be replaced within six months with a specimen of the same 
species and similar size class. 

5. Utilities - Utility companies shall be notified early in the design process and in advance of 
construction to coordinate all parties impacted by the construction. 

6. Agency Approval - The Developer shall be responsible for all costs relating to the required 
public improvements identified in the approved plan and the specific conditions of approval 
and within the City Ordinances and Standard Specifications.  The developer is also 
responsible for securing design approval from all City, State and Federal agencies having 
jurisdiction over the work proposed.  This includes, but is not limited to, the City of Stayton, 
the Fire District, Marion County, DEQ, ODHS (water design), DSL, 1200C (state excavation 
permit), etc 

7. Construction Bonding - Bonding shall be required if there are any public improvements.  
Prior to start of construction of any public improvement, the developer shall provide a 
construction bond in the amount of 100% of the total project costs, plus added City costs 
associated with public construction.  The bond shall be in a form acceptable to the Director 
of Public Works. 

8. Inspection - At least five days prior to commencing construction of any public 
improvements, the Developer shall notify the Director of Public Works in writing of the date 
when (s)he proposes to commence construction of the improvements, so that the City can 
arrange for inspection.  The written notification shall include the name and phone number of 
the contracting company and the responsible contact person.  City inspection will not relieve 
the developer or his engineer of providing sufficient inspection to enforce the approved plans 
and specifications. 

9. Public Works Standards - Where public improvements are required, all public and private 
public works facilities within the development will be designed to the City of Stayton, 
Standard Specifications, Design Standards & Drawings (PW Standards) plus the 
requirements of the Stayton Municipal Code (SMC).  (SMC 12.08.310.1) 

10. Engineered Plans - Where public improvements are required, the applicant’s engineer shall 
submit design plans for approval of all public improvements identified on the approved plan 
or as specified in conditions of approval.  All design plans must meet the Stayton PW 
Standards.  Engineered construction plans and specifications shall be reviewed by the City 



 

Standard Conditions of Approval Page 2 of 2 

Engineer and signed approved by the City Engineer, or Stayton Public Works Department, 
prior to construction. 

11. Street Acceptance - Where public improvements are required, acceptance of completed 
public street improvements associated with the project shall be in accordance with SMC 
12.04.210. 

12. Construction Approval - All public improvements and public utilities shall be fully 
constructed and a letter of substantial completion provided by the City Engineer prior to any 
building permit applications being accepted or issued unless the required improvements are 
deferred under a non-remonstrance or other agreement approved and signed by the City.  
Construction items must be completed within a specified period of time provided in the 
approval letter or the approval of any additional building permits will be withdrawn by the 
City. 

13. Maintenance Bond - After completion and acceptance of a public improvement by the City, 
the developer shall provide a 1-year maintenance bond in the amount of 30% of the 
construction bond amount.  The bond shall be in a form acceptable to the Director of Public 
Works. 

14. As-Builts - Where public improvements are required, the developer shall submit to the City, 
reproducible as-built drawings and an electronic file of all public improvements constructed 
during and in conjunction with this project.  Field changes made during construction shall be 
drafted to the drawings in the same manner as the original plans with clear indication of all 
modifications (strike out old with new added beside).  As-built drawings shall be submitted 
prior to final acceptance of the construction, initiating the one-year maintenance period. 

15. Drainage Permit – A 1200C permit will be secured by the developer if required under the 
rules of the Oregon State DEQ. 

16. SDC - Systems Development Charges are applied to the project at the time of issuance of a 
building permit. 

 



 

       Ci ty  o f  S tayton  
Department of Planning and Development 

362 N. Third Avenue • Stayton, OR 97383 
Phone: (503) 769-2998 • Fax (503) 769-2134 

dfleishman@ci.stayton.or.us www.staytonoregon.gov 

THE CITY OF STAYTON IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER AND SERVICE PROVIDER 
   

POLICE 
386 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-3423 
 FAX (503) 769-7497 

PLANNING AND 

DEVELOPMENT 
362 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-2998 
FAX (503) 767-2134 

PUBLIC WORKS 
362 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-2919 
FAX (503) 767-2134 

WASTEWATER 
950 JETTERS WAY 

STAYTON, OR 97383 
(503) 769-2810 

FAX (503) 769-7413 

LIBRARY 
515 N. FIRST AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-3313 
FAX (503) 769-3218 

 

NOTICE OF DECISION 
BY THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

  
You have recently participated on a pending Land Use Application.  As required by state law, 
this notice is to inform you of the actions of the City of Stayton on that application.  A copy of 
the order containing a summary of the facts, conclusions, and decision is available for review at 
the Planning Office and has been posted on the Planning and Development Department’s 
portion of the City’s web site.  Please feel free to contact the Planning and Development 
Department if you have any questions. 
 
 File No: 9-09/17 
 Applicant: Heidi Shamblen 
 Location: 2550 Martin Dr  
 Date of Decision: October 9, 2017 
 Date of Notice: October 9, 2017 
 Last Day of Appeal or Call-up: October 23, 2017 
 120 Days Ends: January 11, 2018 
 
 
1. Nature of Application:  The application is for minor modifications to a previously 

approved site plan – removing the seasonal sales area and placing a drive-through coffee 
kiosk. 

 
2. Summary of Findings:  The Planning Department found that the application met the 

approval criteria with one exception. 
 
3. Decision and Conditions of Approval:  The application was approved by the Planning 

Department with two conditions of approval. 
 
4. Appeal Right:  The Department’s action may be appealed within 14 days of the mailing of 

this notice.  An appeal to the Planning Commission may be filed with the Director of 
Planning and Development pursuant to Stayton Municipal Code 17.12.110. 

 
 





 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Cindy Chauran, Associate Accountant 
   Elizabeth Baldwin, Utility Billing Clerk 
 
DATE:   November 6, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:  Monthly Finance Department Report 
  
 
 September 2017 August 2017 

Utility Billing 
Number of Bills Mailed 2,414 2,683 

Number of Bills Emailed 281 268 

Number of Bills on Auto-Pay 528 470 

Delinquent Notices Sent Out 495 309 

Courtesy Delinquent Notices Sent to Landlords 166 77 

Notified of Impending Shut-Off & Penalty 160 169 

Customers Issued Payment Extensions 32 30 

Customers with Interrupted Services Non-Payment 13 23 

Services Still Disconnected 1 1 

Accounts Payable 
Number of Checks Issued 137 266 

Total Amount of Checks $266,895.45 $287,751.50 
 



 
Monthly Staff Report  Page 1 of 1  
November 6, 2017 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
DATE:   November 6, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:  Staff Report 
  
     
 
Below you will see the stats for the Police Department for the month of 
September 2017. 
  
 September 

2017 
Year to Date 

2017 
September 

2016 
Year to Date 

2016 
     

Police Activity 811 8530 854 7388 
Investigated Incidents 405 3514 291 2733 
Citations/Warning 90/123 1180/1988 115/202 1056/1792 
Traffic Accidents 5 53 10 98 
Juvenile Abuse 4 40 7 31 
Arrests 35 481 46 586 
Ordinance Complaints 94 545 12 202 
Reserve Volunteer Hrs. 85.75 1084.95 223 2455 
Citizen Volunteer Hrs. 0 177.70 38 486 
Peer Court Referrals: 4 39 3 18 

     
   







 
Public Works Monthly Operating Report  Page 1 
November 6, 2017 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Lisa Meyer, Administrative Assistant 
 
DATE:   November 6, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Works Monthly Operating Report for September 2017 
      
KEY ACTIVITIES STATUS 
 
•  WWTP Facility Effluent flows: 32.83 million gallons were treated during September. The 

highest flow was 1.38 million gallons on September 21st and the lowest flow was 
0.95 million gallons on September 13th. The average flow was 1.09 million 
gallons. Total rainfall for September was 2.87 inches.  

 
• WTP   Highest production day was 5,813,000 gallons on September 12, 2017. 

 
• Water System Installed 256 radio readers to finish the water meter radio reading project.  On 

September 18th, all water meters in the City were read using the vehicle unit.  
Replaced 11 meters and installed 3 new water meters with radio readers.  
Repaired water service at 377 Birch Street.  Replaced a meter stop at 1152 
Deerfield Court. 

 
• Streets  Swept 167 curb miles and collected 60 cubic yards of material.  Put down 1,260 

pounds of cold patch.  Installed 7 new “Welcome to Stayton” signs. 
 

 Parks  Volunteers: 
    Community Service:   Total # of Volunteers = 0, Total # of hours = 0 
    Life skills High School Students:   Total # of Volunteers = 0, Total # of hours = 0 
    Parks Board:  Total # of Volunteers = 5, Total # of hours = 5 
 
• Building Permits   

            Permit Type Issued SDC’s Paid 
New Single Family Dwelling      
2257 Deer Ave., 2342 Deer Ave.,1009 Brody Ct. 

3 $43,028.00 
 

Residential Building Addition/Alter/Other - $0 
Commercial Building Addition/Alter/Other 
101 Fern Ridge Rd. 

3 $13,209.00 

Electrical -  
Mechanical  1  
Plumbing -  

TOTAL 2 $56,237.00 
One (1) Residential SDC = $11,288.00 + $733.00 for Mill Creek SDC + Storm 
Water SDC $1990.00 or $2854.00 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Lance S. Ludwick P.E., Director of Public Works 
 
DATE:   November 6th, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:  Annual TMDL Report (Informational Only) 
  
     
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
As part of a watershed approach to water quality problems, the State of Oregon is in the 
process of developing a Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) and Water Quality Management 
Plan (WQMP) for each water body that does not meet specific water quality standards. The 
Willamette River is among these water quality impaired bodies of water for parameters of 
temperature, mercury, and bacteria. 
 
The United States EPA approved the Willamette River Basin TMDL (WB- TMDL) On September 
29, 2006. In the WB-TMDL, the City of Stayton is listed as a Designate Management Agency 
(DMA) because it is bordered by Mill Creek and North Santiam River which are Willamette River 
tributaries. As a DMA, Stayton is responsible for water quality within its jurisdiction and is 
required to submit a TMDL Implementation Plan Annual Report to the Oregon Department of 
Environmental Quality under Oregon Administrative Rule 340-042-0080(3). 
 
This report provides a comprehensive description of Stayton’s ongoing and planned efforts to 
reduce targeted pollutant loadings in accordance with the WB- TMDL. 
 
Oregon Statewide Land Use Goals 
 
In 1973 the Oregon State Legislature established statewide standards to be used by local 
government agencies in land use planning.  The intent of the standards was to protect Oregon’s 
natural resources and promote economic development. The Department of Land Conservation 
and Development (DLCD) was created at that time to be the administrative agency to manage 
these standards. 
 
Over time, these standards have evolved into a set of 19 Land Use and Planning goals covering 
everything from Citizen Involvement to the preservation of Ocean Resources. As not all of these 
goals directly apply to the WB-TMDL, DEQ has shown interest in the position of Stayton in 

 
Annual TMDL Report  Page 1 of 2  
November 6th, 2017 



relation to Statewide Land Use and Planning Goals 5 and 6 because these are the pertinent 
sections with regard to the Implementation Plan. 
 
Statewide Planning Goal 5 is to protect natural resources, and conserve scenic and historic 
areas, and open spaces. In correlation with this goal, local governments are to adopt programs 
that will achieve this goal. Part of this is to inventory riparian corridors and establish policies to 
protect them. 
 
Statewide planning Goal 6 is similar to Goal 5 in that the objective is to maintain and improve 
the quality of the air, water and land resources of the state. All waste and process discharges 
cannot exceed the carrying capacity of the water resources nor degrade nor threaten them. 
 
The city’s comprehensive plan was revised in April 2006, and addresses all of statewide land use 
goals. The comprehensive plan has been acknowledged by the Department of Land 
Conservation and Development to be compliant with the state wide goals. The city’s ongoing 
land use practices, permitting practices, and development code are consistent with the land use 
goals and the proposed management strategies in the implementation plan. 
 
Existing Water Quality 
 
Stayton’s TMDL efforts focus on the waters within the city’s jurisdiction which includes the 
Salem Ditch (also known as the Stayton Ditch), the North Santiam River, Mill Creek, and the 
Power Canal. 
 
The majority of the city’s urban impact is on the Salem Ditch, which travels east to west along 
the south border of the city, then turns north and runs along the city’s west border ultimately 
discharging to Mill Creek in the northwest corner of the city limits. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The fiscal impact is unknown at this time. 
 
ENCLOSURE(S) 
TMDL Report 
 

 
Annual TMDL Report  Page 2 of 2  
November 6th, 2017 































City of Stayton
TMDL Implementation Plan

Annual Report 
2016-2017

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

A B C D E F G H I J
STRATEGY MEASURE TIMELINE BENCHMARK

What is being done, or what will be done to 
reduce or control pollution from this source How  implementation or completion will be measured When this strategy will be 

implemented or completed
The goal to be met within the indicated 

timeline

1 All Variety of 
Sources

Update Storm Water Design 
Standards for the City of Stayton 

Incorporate applicable detailed provisions 
from the 2008 Portland Stormwater 

Management Manual, and adopt design 
standards for  Low Impact Developments

Public Works Director approval Start 2014        
Complete 2018 Updated Standard Adoption  

The Storm Water Design Standards were revised and adapted September 2015. The Public Works 
Director and the City Engineer reviewed and updated the City of Stayton Public Works Design 
Standards and the Public Works Construction Specifications June - August 2015. The City of Stayton 
City Council was apprised of  the Design Standards update at the September 21st, 2015 City Council 
Meeting.                                                                                                                                                                                                           
The City of Stayton Design Standards and Construction Specifications are continuously under the 
review by the City Engineer and the Public Works Director. These  Standards are updated as needed.

September-17

2 All Variety of 
Sources

Acquire property for development 
of detention basins to manage 
peak flow runoff into irrigation 

canals and rivers

Purchase property per Storm Drainage 
Master Plan to build new detention basins Purchase property Start 2014-Complete 

2018
Individual property 

acquisitions

The City has purchased a 13-acre site for a regional detention facility. The City has retained an 
engineering consultant to design the regional detention facility.    Keller Associates are preparing the 
final construction plans for review. Projected start date for construction is Spring 2018.                                                                                                

September-17

Ongoing -The City did not attend three North Santiam Watershed Council Meetings during 
the 2016 - 2017 cycle. The City will strive to attend the meetings in the future.                                                                                                                                                                                                        
The City is scheduled to meet the SWCD quarterly. There are times during the growing 
season that this becomes more difficult however.

September-17

6
Ensure sediment erosion control plans are 
provided for development and redevelopment 
plans

Track % of sediment erosion control 
plan checks performed as part of plan 
review process

Ongoing 100% of development and 
redevelopment plans  (Y/N) All Site Development Plans and all Building Permits are reviewed for Erosion Control Plans September-17

7 Remind developers of 1200-C permit 
requirements in preconstruction meetings

Track % of meetings wherein a 1200-
C permit reminder was provided Ongoing

100% of preconstruction 
meetings involved a 1200-C 

permit reminder (Y/N)

Ongoing- Erosion Control Plans are required for all development within the City of Stayton.  During 
the Land Use process for a Site Development the city planner will request comments from the city 
engineer. The comments are placed in the Conditions of Approval for the development application. 
The city engineer informs the developer if a 1200C Permit will be required for the project.  So the 1200 
C permit tracking is performed well before the pre-construction meeting, it is tracked throughout the 
process. A Site Development Permit will not be issued unless all items in the Conditions of Approval 
are not met. Section 102.09 of the City of Stayton Design Standards outlines what the requirements 
are for a plan submittal for a Site Development Permit.

September-17

8
Consider adding language to existing city 
codes and/or design standards for erosion 
control on construction sites <1ac

Public works to propose language to 
be considered for inclusion in existing 
codes and standards.

Adopt and implement 
by September 2018

Propose Language for 
revised code (Y/N)

The 2015 Public Works Design Standards has language and new Standard Details to address this 
issue and reduce pollutants from the outflow from all new storm drainage infrastructure. The City has 
also been working to install Pollution Control Manholes prior to storm lines out falling directly into a 
water body.  The City will add language to address to the Design Standards to address sites < 1 acre 
in the 2018 Design Standards update.

September-17

9 Perform regular street sweeping of curbed 
streets

Track % of streets swept monthly and 
volume of material collected monthly Ongoing

Fall & Winter: At least 2 x per 
mo.   Spring:  2 x per month.    
Summer: 1 x per month.   
Downtown 4 x per month. 

From August 1, 2016 through July 31, 2017: Swept 100% of curbed streets minimum once per month;  
swept 1,351 curb miles for the year and collected 770 cubic yards of debris.  Collected 110 c.y. of fall 
debris during the annual Fall cleanup event ( primarily leaves).                                                                                                                                                                                     

September-17

September-17

The City has one representative who sits on the ACWA Board and attends all Board 
Meetings ( 12 per year) and some of the committee meetings (6/yr.). Subjects discussed in 
meetings: temperature numeric limits, human health criteria, ammonia and other standards, 
water quality trading, natural treatment systems use of recycled water, TMDL 
implementation plans, Willamette River Alliance, variances, site specific criteria, compliance 
schedules, NPDES permitting strategies, ect.....

POLLUTANT HOW THIS WILL BE DONE STATUS

Protect and promote healthy 
riparian areas

Temperature

Maintain contact with ACWA and continue to 
participate with North Santiam Watershed 

Council

Track the number of development and 
redevelopment plans reviewed for 
conformance with riparian policy

100% of development and 
redevelopment plans 

Date UpdatedSOURCE

September-17

September-17

OngoingTrack number of coordination 
meetings attended annually

The City of Stayton Planning & Development Department reviewed seventeen land use applications 
for development from October 1, 2016 to September 30, 2017.  None (0) of these applications were 
adjacent to a water way, or subject to review under the Natural Resource Overlay Zone.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

The City has tried several times over the past 5-years to plant trees in Riverfront Park, east of the 
water treatment plant, along the North Santiam River. We have experienced a very high mortality rate. 
Very few trees have survived.  The City is in the planning phase to establish a method to water the 
trees.  Once we establish how we will water the trees so they become established we will reach out to 
the North Santiam Watershed Council  to try to obtain donated trees.  The City will  make an effort to 
replant the corridor during the 2017/2018 year.

Are the trees/shrubs growing?

Ongoing

Started 2007, 
Ongoing

 Land use code requires riparian setbacks

Review progress of riparian project along N. 
Santiam River on City property east of Stayton 

water treatment plant, replant

3

4

Work with other agencies on 
watershed solutions

Solar 
Radiation

Check the site annually

5
Attend 3 meetings annually 

and meet quarterly with 
SWCD staff

Mercury

Sediment
Reduce sediment reaching  Mill 

Creek and North Santiam through 
storm water



City of Stayton
TMDL Implementation Plan

Annual Report 
2016-2017

5
A B C D E F G H I J

     

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

10 Clean catch basins annually Track % of catch basins cleaned 
annually Ongoing

Cleaned on 3-5 year cycle. 
20%+ to be cleaned 
annually

From August 1, 2016 through July 31st, 2017:  The City Cleaned 130  catchbasins ( 13.7% of all 
catchbasins inventoried).                                                                                                                                                                     September-17

11 Clean storm lines once every 3 yrs. Track % of lines cleaned annually Ongoing
Clean on 3-5 year cycle.   
20%+ to be cleaned 
annually

From August 1, 2016 through July 31, 2017: Cleaned 2.75 miles  or 9.2% of all the storm pipe in the 
City.   The City continues to strive to meet the 20% annual cleaning requirement.   Maintenance costs 
continue to rise and pose the biggest road block to meeting the 20% threshhold.                                                                                                                                                                        

September-17

12 Air deposition Reduce air pollution Support commuter ride program by providing 
information at Public Works Building Brochures provided? Y/N Ongoing Brochures provided?  Y/N Ongoing -CARTS brochures available at City Hall. September-17

13 Pet Waste
Reduce pet waste reaching 

streams through storm water 
runoff

Continue support and use of pet waste 
stations at city parks.  Inventory existing 
stations, and assess need for additional 
stations

Provide inventory and assessment 
results in a report

Review every 3 years 
(2013 and 2016) Report presented? Y/N

The City of Stayton continues to maintain and add new dog waste disposal systems within the parks 
system.  The City has 12 pet waste stations, one at each City park. We use about 12,000 bags per 
year. The report referenced is for ongoing inspection and determination of additional or relocation of 
existing pet waste stations. This is an ongoing process and its a weekly duty of our Parks Supervisor 
to assess.                                                                                                                     

September-17

14 Municipal 
Sewage

Reduce municipal sewage 
reaching streams through surface 
water and groundwater pathways

Detect and repair leaking city sewer lines as 
resources allow

Track % of lines cleaned and 
inspected Ongoing 20% of lines cleaned and 

inspected annually

From August 1, 2016 and July 31, 2017 the City cleaned and inspected 6.29 miles or 19.1% of the 
sewer lines.  There were 30 inline pipe repairs. The City continues to strive to meet the 20% annual 
cleaning requirement, but overall sewer system maintenance costs prevent the City form meeting this 
threshhold.                                                                                                             

September-17

16 Pollution Prevention in Municipal 
Operations

The City swept 1,351 curb miles, cleaned 130 catchbasins, and cleaned 2.75 miles of storm 
pipe. We also installed 3 pollutiuon control devices to prevent sediment from entering the 
Salem Ditch.

September-17

17

18 Coordinate with Volunteer Groups Begin tracking and report number of 
volunteer projects performed annually Ongoing 100% of City Coordinated 

Volunteer projects reported

 I-Serve work groups to clean up  Wilderness Park of Ivy and debrie in June 2017. A runners club has 
neen picking up trash along Wilco Road on a quaterly basis. Volunteers work in our parks on a 
regular basis picking up trash.                                                                        

September-17

19 Educate public about illegal discharges Brochures provided? Y/N Start 2014        
Ongoing Brochures provided? Y/N

Education of the public is ongoing. Brochures were completed in 2017 and are in the Public Works 
Office for the public review and to use. They also will be made available at our school presentations. 
The City also put it on the city website.

September-17

20 Develop and implement an outreach 
program/strategy for water quality protection

Stormwater/water quality education via 
fact sheets, signage, mailers

Start 2014        
Ongoing Fact sheets provided?  Y/N

Some of the "fact sheet" information regarding water quality protection was included in the 
Stormwater Protection brochure. The information should be expanded upon and will be during the 
2017-2018 year.

September-17

21 Present TMDL IP to City Council for Approval 
and provide annual reports Presented? Y/N Ongoing (Annually) Presented? Y/N The annual TMDL report is scheduled to go before the City Council on October 16th, 2017. September-17

22 Establish stormwater utility City Council Adoption Adopt and implement 
by December 2014 Ordinance Adoption Ordinance 964 was passed by the Stayton City Council in December of 2013 establishing a s storm 

drainage utility. September-17

23 September-17

24 Update storm water system mapping

Additional system areas revised in 
database based on additional 
collected data and insert as-built 
construction data into the GIS system; 
field verify accuracy of data

Ongoing Revisions made? Y/N
The City of Stayton Public Works Department continues to update the GIS mapping system with 
asbuilt information.  Old asbuilt information is updated and input into the GIS system on a regular 
basis.                                                                                                                 

September-17

25 Perform water quality testing in Salem Ditch, 
Stayton Ditch and West Stayton irrigation ditch Provide annual summary report Ongoing

Continue testing and track 
water quality improvements/ 
degradations over time. 

Keller Associates prepared a Water Quality Monitoring Plan in January 2010 .  The plan calls for 
testing at 5 locations inside the Stayton UGB.  Tests are taken for Dissolved Oxygen, Temperature, 
Total Suspended Solids, E-Coli, and Mercury.  In 2016-2017 tests were conducted on October 13th, 
2016, November 14th, 2016, February 9th, 2017 and  March 7th, 2017.  Summaries of the samples are 
attached to this report.

September-17

26 Construction Site Runoff Control Septermber-16

27 Post Construction Storm Water 
Management

Septermber-16

See: Mercury>Sediment>Street Sweeping, Catch Basin Cleaning, Storm Line Cleaning

Illicit Discharge Detection and 
Elimination

Bacteria

Public Participation

See: Riparian preservation requirements in section 3 of implementation plan.

See: Mercury>Sediment>Stormwater Reduction>1200C, Erosion Control Plans   

See: Bacteria>Sewage>Reduce>Cross-Connections

Additional 
Elements 

Required from the 
WB-WQMP

Six Control 
Measures for 
Mercury and 
Bacteria from 
NPDES Phase 

II Program

Public Education and Outreach

See: Mercury>Air>Reduce Pollution>Commuter Ride information

     
     

 















 

 

 

CITY OF STAYTON 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: November 6, 2017 

 SUBJECT: Report of Activities for September, 2017 

  

Planning Commission meeting held; public hearing on code amendments to require fences 
around subdivisions in certain cases; public hearing on modification to previous site plan 
approval; public hearing on annexation, comprehensive plan amendment, zoning map 
amendment; discussion of code amendments regarding building maintenance and downtown 
standards 

Met with representative of City of Salem regarding Salem water line intertie project 

Preapplication meeting regarding possible commercial development 

Attended annual meeting of Oregon City Planning Directors Association 

Working with Public Works Department staff, improvements to the Geographic Information 
System continued 

 



 
Monthly Library Report  Page 1 of 1  
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Janna Moser - Library Director 
 
DATE:   November 6, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:  September Library report 
  
 
 
Author Joyce Cherry Cresswell visited in September. Her book, A Great Length of Time, won the 
2017 Oregon Literary Arts Ken Kesey Award for Fiction. She gave a fascinating talk about Civil 
War era medicine intertwined with the story of her great grandmother.  
 
The library hosted an art display throughout September from the Lake Oswego Reads Art Show. 
The art was based on the book Rise of the Rocket Girls: The Women Who Propelled Us, from 
Missiles to the Moon to Mars by Nathalia Holt.  
 
Storytimes, Motion Monday, Thumpin’ Thursday and all other children’s programming resumed 
in September. The teens made candy sushi treats out of rice cereal and candy. Over 35 adults 
and teens repurposed books into book safes at our DIY program.  
 
The Stayton Friends of the Library celebrated the 9th Anniversary of the Friends of the Library 
Used Bookstore. The Friends also picked up a moving truck worth of books from a sale in 
Philomath to add to their books for the October sale. The library staff had a shelf reading party 
with the volunteers. We put most of the library collection back in order and had great fun.  
 
Upcoming events to mark on your calendars: 

• Adults and Teens: DIY CRAFTSHOP: Painted Rocks November 9 at 5:30 
• Teens: Mini Pizza Party - November 15 at 4:00pm 
• Oregon Author visit - Barbara S. Mahoney November 16 at 7:00pm  
• Children: Stuffed Animal Sleepover and Pajama Party - November 17 at 6:00pm 
• Brews, Bites and Books - January 27 

 
 
 
 



TOTAL CHECKOUTS 12,761 12,616 11,204 36,581 126,579

Self check out 4,086 4,177 3,703 11,966 39,895

Library2Go (ebooks +) 910 972 947 2,829 9,917

Non-resident cards             $89.50 $130.00 $177.00 $396.50 $2,180.20

Fines: overdue & lost books $1,381.98 $535.09 $1,235.71 $3,152.78 $10,821.37

Room fees                        -$31.25 $25.00 $115.00 $108.75 $1,332.00

TOTAL $3,658.03 $14,333.57

In-Person, by phone and computer help 584 364 352 1,300 6,035

NEW PATRON CARDS 65 89 58 212 796

INTERNET USE 938 1,122 1,066 3,126 11,398

Children & adults at Children's Programs 761 58 427 1,246 7,229

Teens 17 20 32 69 150

Adults 57 31 43 131 764

Outreach 0 0 0 0 4,054

TOTAL 1,446 12,197

MEETING ROOM ATTENDANCE 33 54 91 178 1,621

PATRON VISITS 7,645 7,690 6,285 21,620 79,782

VOLUNTEER HOURS 254 210 170 633 2,392

OTHER CIRCULATION SERVICES

INCOME RECEIVED

REFERENCE QUESTIONS

PROGRAM ATTENDANCE

March April May June 2017-18 YTD 2016-17 YTD

2017-2018 Monthly Library  Statistics

July August Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb.


	CITY OF STAYTON
	M E M O R A N D U M
	FROM:  Lisa Meyer, Administrative Assistant



